
Agenda for a meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee 
to be held on Friday 18 March 2016 at 1100 in Committee Room 
1, City Hall, Bradford

Members of the Committee – Councillors

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR THE INDEPENDENTS

Eaton L Smith (Ch) Naylor
Thornton (DCh)
Swallow

Alternates:

Conservative Labour The Independents

Ellis Farley Hawkesworth

K Hussain

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or audio format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed 

except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered 
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be 
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such 
as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes 
to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda 
Contact who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in 
place. Those present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting 
should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the 
officer named at the foot of that agenda item.  

From: To:
Meic Sullivan-Gould
Interim City Solicitor
Agenda Contact:  Fatima Butt
Phone: 01274 432227
E-Mail:  fatima.butt@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



 
A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1. ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The Interim City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are attending the 
meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted members on matters to be 
considered at the meeting. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes apparent to the 
member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in discussion and voting 
unless the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an interest which the 
Member feels would call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member 
concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must not vote in 
decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, and must disclose at the 
meeting that this restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not disclosable 
pecuniary interests but which they consider should be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council Standing Order 44.

3 MINUTES

Recommended – 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2016 be signed as a correct 
record (previously circulated).  

4. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by contacting the 
person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports and background papers may be 
restricted.  



Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper should be made to 
the relevant Director or Assistant Director whose name is shown on the front page of the 
report.  
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if you wish to appeal.  

(Fatima Butt - 01274 432227)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

5 TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE 
PROVISION STRATEGY AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2016/17

The Director of Finance will submit Document “AN” which reports on the Council’s 
Treasury Strategy for borrowing for the three financial years commencing 2015/16 and the 
Annual Investment Strategy for 2015/16.

Recommended-

That the Treasury policy be noted and recommended to Council for adoption.

(David Willis – 01274 432361)

6 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE 2015/16 AUDITS OF CITY 
OF BRADFORD METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL AND WEST 
YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND

As part of the audit of the Authority, External Audit considers how the Governance and
Audit Committee, as those charged with governance, gains assurance over management
processes and arrangements:

• to prevent and detect fraud; and
• to comply with applicable law and regulations.

In accordance with the above the External Auditor will submit Document “AO” which asks 
some questions about the above arrangements and requests that the Committee provide a 
response by 30 April 2016.

The report also highlights changes affecting the public inspection of accounts.

Recommended-

(1) That the External Audit Progress Report and briefing be noted.



(2) That a response be provided to External Audit by 30 April 2016 to questions 
about the arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and to comply with 
applicable law and regulations.

(Steve Appleton – 01274 431995)

7 MINUTES OF WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND (WYPF) JOINT ADVISORY 
GROUP HELD ON 28 JANUARY 2016

The Council’s Financial Regulations require the minutes of meetings of the WYPF Joint 
Advisory Group to be submitted to this Committee.

In accordance with the above the Director of West Yorkshire Pension Fund will submit 
Document “AP” which reports on the minutes of the meeting of the WYPF Joint Advisory 
Group held on 28 January 2016.

Recommended-

That the minutes of the WYPF Joint Advisory Group held on 28 January 2016 be 
considered.

(Rodney Barton – 01274 432317)

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

The Committee is asked to consider if the item relating to the minutes of the meeting of the 
West Yorkshire Pension Fund Investment Advisory Panel meeting held on 28 January 
2016 should be considered in the absence of the public and, if so, to approve the following 
recommendation:

Recommended –

That the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the items 
relating to minutes of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Investment Advisory Panel 
meeting held on 28 January 2016 because the information to be considered is 
exempt information within paragraph 3 (Financial or Business Affairs) of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  It is also considered that it is in the public 
interest to exclude public access to this item.

9. MINUTES OF WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND (WYPF) INVESTMENT 
ADVISORY PANEL MEETING HELD ON 28 JANUARY 2016 

The Council’s Financial Regulations require the minutes of meetings of the WYPF be 
submitted to this Committee.



In accordance with this requirement, the Director of West Yorkshire Pension Fund will 
submit Not for Publication Document “AQ” which reports on the minutes of the meeting 
of the WYPF Investment Advisory Panel held on 28 January 2016. 

Recommended – 

That the minutes of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Investment Advisory Panel 
held on 28 January 2016 be considered.

(Rodney Barton – 01274 432317)

___________________________________________



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director of Finance to the meeting 
of Governance and Audit Committee to be held 
on 18 March 2016. 
 
 
           

          AN 
Subject:   
 
Treasury Management Policy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Strategy and Annual 
Investment Strategy 2016/17. 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report shows the Council’s Treasury Strategy for borrowing for the three financial 
years commencing 2015/16 and the Annual Investment Strategy for 2015/16. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Stuart McKinnon- Evans 
Director of Finance 

Portfolio:   
Leader 
 

Report Contact:  David Willis 

Phone: (01274) 432361 
E-mail: david.willis@bradford.gov.uk 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Corporate 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1/



 2 

Treasury Management Policy Statement, 
Minimum Revenue Provision Strategy and Annual Investment 

Strategy 2016/2017 

1 Introduction 

1.1  Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that 
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 
the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning, to ensure that 
the Council can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer 
term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses.   On occasion any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.” 

 

1.2  Reporting requirements 

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.   
 
Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - 
The first, and most important report covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

• the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings 
are to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
A mid year treasury management report – This will update members with 
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision.  
 

Page 2



 3 

An annual treasury report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy. 
 
Scrutiny 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 

1.3  Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17 

The strategy for 2016/17 covers two main areas: 
 
Capital issues 

• the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

Treasury management issues 

• the current treasury position; 

• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 

• prospects for interest rates; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

• debt rescheduling; 

• the investment strategy; 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• policy on use of external service providers. 

 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and  CLG Investment Guidance. 

1.4  Training 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsibe for scrutiny.     

The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed.  

1.5  Treasury management consultants 

The Council uses Capita Asset Services, Treasury solutions as its external 
treasury management advisors. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is 
not placed upon  our external service providers.  
 
 

Page 3



 4 

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented, and subjected to regular review.  
 

2 The Capital Prudential Indicators 2016/17 -2018/19 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected 
in the prudential indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview 
and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

2.1Capital expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 
cycle.   
 

Capital expenditure 
 

2014/15 
Actual 

£m 

2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 
Capital 
Expenditure 

114 81 133 58 68 

2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 
need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid 
for, will increase the CFR.   

The CFR does not increase indefinitely. Each year, a minimum revenue 
provision (MRP) is charged to the Council’s revenue budget (see further 
details below). 

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 
leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and 
so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.  The 
Council currently has £193m of such schemes within the CFR. 

 

 2014/15 
Actual 

£m 

2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 
Capital Financing 
Requirement 

    679    671       719      733     735 

 

Page 4



 5 

2.3Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum 
revenue provision - MRP).The MRP a statutory charge which broadly reduces 
the borrowing need in line with each assets life. In this way capital expenditure 
(as measured through the CFR)is over time , paid for through the revenue 
budget.   

DCLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve 
an MRP Statement in advance of each year. Bradford like most other 
authorities continued to use the regulatory method for calculating MRP on 
supported borrowing, whilst adopting the Asset Life (Equal instalment) method 
for un-supporting borrowing. The regulatory method is based on a charge of 
4% on the outstanding debt. This has the disadvantage that the actual charge 
differs each year being higher in earlier years then reducing year after year. 
Moreover the debt is never actually paid off as the annual charge reduces with 
the opening debt. For example if the Council continues to use the regulatory 
method it would still have £43.7m of this debt outstanding after 50 years. A 
change to the asset life method in equal instalments is considered more 
financially prudent as the repayments are paid in equal instalments over a 
fixed period. 

The proposed method for calculating the MRP on each category of debt is 
outlined below: 

a) The policy for charging MRP on historic supported borrowing be 
changed to the asset life method calculated on an equal instalment 
basis. This brings it into line with the MRP policy for prudential 
borrowing. The historic supported borrowing cannot be tied to specific 
assets. Therefore an assumed asset life has to be used. Most of the 
Council’s operational buildings have been given estimated lives of 
between 40 and 60 years. Therefore it is proposed to use an assumed 
life of 50 years. This is considered more prudent than the regulatory 
method as the debt will be paid in a fixed period of 50 years. This 
means a change to policy used hitherto.   

b) Unsupported or prudential borrowing MRP is based on the Asset Life 
method that is, the expenditure financed from borrowing is divided by 
the expected asset life. For schemes funded before 31st March 2012 
the MRP is calculated on the annuity basis and for schemes funded 
after 1st April 2012 the MRP is calculated on an equal instalment basis. 
This means no change to existing policy.   

c)  Since 2009/10 the appropriate financing costs for the Council’s Building 
Schools for the Future (BSF) Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes 
have been included in MRP calculations adjusted as relevant where the 
estimated asset life is different to the PFI contract life and financing 
period. This means no change to existing policy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 5



 6 

d)  Core funds and expected investment balances  

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either 
finance capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the 
revenue budget will have an ongoing impact on investments unless 
resources are supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales 
etc).  

2.4 Affordability prudential indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators. In addition, this framework includes prudential indicators 
of the affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an 
indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the overall finances.  

2.5 Council’s Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 
long term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue 
stream. 
 
% 2014/15 

Actual 
% 

2015/16 
Estimate 

% 

2016/17 
Estimate 

% 
 

2017/18 
Estimate 

% 
 

2018/19 
Estimate 

% 

Ratio     15.6      15.8      14.8     15.4     15.0 
 
The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report. What this indicator shows is that burden on 
the annual revenue budget which arises from capital expenditure is being 
maintained at a constant rate. This is an important element of the capital 
expenditure strategy at a time when the annual revenue budget continues to 
shrink in line with austerity. 

2.6 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on council tax 

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to 
the three year capital programme recommended in this budget report compared 
to the Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans. 
 

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D 
council tax 

 
 2014/15 

Actual 
2015/16 

Estimate 
2016/17 

Estimate 
2017/18 

Estimate 
2018/19 

Estimate 
Council tax - 
band D 

       £0.00       £0.00      £0.00      £0.00       £0.00 

Page 6



 7 

3.Treasury Management                                                                                                      
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the  relevant professional codes, 
so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity.  This will involve 
both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the 
organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant 
treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the 
annual investment strategy. 

3.1 Current portfolio position 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2015, with forward 
projections are  summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the 
treasury management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need 
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under 
borrowing.  

£m 2014/15 
Actual 

£m 

2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

External Debt 
Debt at 1 April       418        391     338        337      337 
Expected change in 
Debt 

     (27)        (53)      (1)           0         0 

Other long-term 
liabilities (OLTL) 

      202        195     191        187       183 

Expected change in 
OLTL 

        (7)             (4)       (4)         (4)          (4) 

Actual gross debt at 
31 March  

       620         586      529        524        520 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

       679          671      719        733        735 

Under / (over) 
borrowing 

         59           85       190        209        215 

 

Based on the current forecast level of capital expenditure the Table above 
shows that the gap between the CFR and external borrowing is expected to 
grow over the next few years. The difference is met from the Council’s own 
funds sometimes referred to as internal borrowing. This is sustainable as long 
as those funds are not required for another purpose – for example, reserves 
or grants that have not yet been used. 

Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure 
that the Council operates its activities within well defined limits. One of these 
is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the 
short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of 
any additional CFR for 2016/17 and the following two financial years.  This allows 
some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that 
borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.       

Page 7



 8 

The Director of Finance reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  
This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the 
proposals in this budget report.   

3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

The operational boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is 
not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure 
to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt. 

Operational boundary  2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

Debt       380      380           380 
Other long term 
liabilities 

      220      220      220 

Total       600      600      600 
 

The authorised limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a 
limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or 
revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the 
longer term.   

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either 
the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this 
power has not yet been exercised. 

Authorised limit 2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 
Debt       400      400           400 
Other long term 
liabilities 

      240      240      240 

Total       640      640      640 
 

These limits assume that the Council will be able to sustain a level of internal 
borrowing based on current forecasts of cash balances. This position will be 
monitored over the next year to determine whether the limits need to be 
reviewed in future years. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 9 

 

3.3 Prospects for interest rates 

 
The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its treasury advisor and 
part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest 
rates.  The following table gives our central view. 
 

 

 
UK. UK GDP growth rates in 2013 of 2.2% and 2.9% in 2014 were the 
strongest growth rates of any G7 country; the 2014 growth rate was also the 
strongest UK rate since 2006 and although the 2015 growth rate is likely to be 
a leading rate in the G7 again, it looks likely to disappoint previous forecasts 
and come in at about 2%. Quarter 1 of 2015 was weak at +0.4% (+2.9% y/y) 
though there was a slight increase in quarter 2 to +0.5% (+2.3% y/y) before 
weakening again to +0.4% (2.1% y/y) in quarter 3. The November Bank of 
England Inflation Report included a forecast for growth to remain around 2.5 – 
2.7% over the next three years, driven mainly by strong consumer demand as 
the squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers has been reversed by a 
recovery in wage inflation at the same time that CPI inflation has fallen to, or 
near to, zero since February 2015.  Investment expenditure is also expected 
to support growth. However, since the August Inflation report was issued, 
most worldwide economic statistics have been weak and financial markets 
have been particularly volatile.  The November Inflation Report flagged up 
particular concerns for the potential impact of these factors on the UK. 
 
The Inflation Report was also notably subdued in respect of the forecasts for 
inflation; this was expected to barely get back up to the 2% target within the 2-3 
year time horizon. The increase in the forecast for inflation at the three year 
horizon was the biggest in a decade and at the two year horizon was the 
biggest since February 2013. However, the first round of falls in oil, gas and 
food prices over late 2014 and also in the first half 2015, will fall out of the 12 
month calculation of CPI during late 2015 / early 2016 but a second, more 
recent round of falls in fuel and commodity prices will delay a significant tick 
up in inflation from around zero: this is now expected to get back to around 
1% by the end  of 2016 and not get to near 2% until the second half of 2017, 
though the forecasts in the Report itself were for an even slower rate of 
increase.  
 
 

Page 9



 10 

However, more falls in the price of oil and imports from emerging countries in 
early 2016 will further delay the pick up in inflation. There is therefore 
considerable uncertainty around how quickly pay and CPI inflation will rise in 
the next few years and this makes it difficult to forecast when the MPC will 
decide to make a start on increasing Bank Rate.  
 
The weakening of UK GDP growth during 2015 and the deterioration of 
prospects in the international scene, especially for emerging market countries, 
have consequently led to forecasts for when the first increase in Bank Rate 
would occur being pushed back to quarter 4 of 2016. There is downside risk to 
this forecast i.e. it could be pushed further back. 
 
USA. The American economy made a strong comeback after a weak first 
quarter’s growth at +0.6% (annualised), to grow by no less than 3.9% in 
quarter 2 of 2015, but then pulled back to 2.0% in quarter 3. The run of strong 
monthly increases in nonfarm payrolls figures for growth in employment in 
2015 prepared the way for the Fed. to embark on its long awaited first 
increase in rates of 0.25% at its December meeting.  However, the 
accompanying message with this first increase was that further increases will 
be at a much slower rate, and to a much lower ultimate ceiling, than in 
previous business cycles, mirroring comments by our own MPC.  
 
Eurozone. In the Eurozone,in January the European Central Bank unleashing 
a massive €1.1 trillion programme of quantitative easing (QE) to buy up high 
credit quality government and other debt of selected EZ countries. This 
programme of €60bn of monthly purchases started in March 2015 and it was 
intended to run initially to September 2016.  At the ECB’s December meeting, 
this programme was extended to March 2017 but was not increased in terms 
of the amount of monthly purchases.  The ECB also cut its deposit facility rate 
by 10bps from -0.2% to -0.3%.  This programme of monetary easing has had 
a limited positive effect in helping a recovery in consumer and business 
confidence and a start to some improvement in economic growth.  GDP 
growth rose to 0.5% in quarter 1 2015 (1.3% y/y) but has then eased back to 
+0.4% (+1.6% y/y) in quarter 2 and to +0.3% (+1.6%) in quarter 3.  Financial 
markets were disappointed by the ECB’s lack of more decisive action in 
December and it is likely that it will need to boost its QE programme if it is to 
succeed in significantly improving growth in the EZ and getting inflation up 
from the current level of around zero to its target of 2%.   
Greece.  During July, Greece finally capitulated to EU demands to implement a 
major programme of austerity and is now cooperating fully with EU demands. An 
€86bn third bailout package has since been agreed though it did nothing to 
address the unsupportable size of total debt compared to GDP.  However, huge 
damage has been done to the Greek banking system and economy by the 
resistance of the Syriza Government, elected in January, to EU demands. The 
surprise general election in September gave the Syriza government a mandate to 
stay in power to implement austerity measures. However, there are major doubts 
as to whether the size of cuts and degree of reforms required can be fully 
implemented and so Greek exit from the euro may only have been delayed by this 
latest bailout. 
 

Page 10



 11 

Portugal and Spain.  The general elections in September and December 
respectively have opened up new areas of political risk where the previous right 
wing reform-focused pro-austerity mainstream political parties have lost their 
majority of seats.  An anti-austerity coalition has won a majority of seats in 
Portugal while the general election in Spain produced a complex result where no 
combination of two main parties is able to form a coalition with a majority of seats. 
It is currently unresolved as to what administrations will result from both these 
situations. This has created nervousness in bond and equity markets for these 
countries which has the potential to spill over and impact on the whole Eurozone 
project.  
 
Banking Sector .In January and February equity markets have been hit hard 
by the continued falling oil prices, issues in China and concerns over the 
possabilty of recession in the major economics. This has reduced the 
likelihood  of interest rate raises but also raised issues again about the 
banking sector. With their share prices and debt been hit hard.  
 
 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2016/17 and 
beyond; 

• Borrowing interest rates have been highly volatile during 2015 as 
alternating bouts of good and bad news have promoted optimism, and 
then pessimism, in financial markets.  Gilt yields have continued to 
remain at historically phenominally low levels during 2015. The policy of 
avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has 
served well over the last few years.  However, this needs to be carefully 
reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in later times, when 
authorities will not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance new capital 
expenditure and/or to refinance maturing debt; 

• There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an 
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between 
borrowing costs and investment returns. 

3.4 Borrowing strategy  

Over the past year the Council has repaid £53 million of maturing debt 
bringing its level of external debt down to £338m.This has resulted in a 
reduction in a reduction in cash balances. Given this reduction combined with 
the forecast use of reserves and the underborrowed position means that the 
Council now expects to maintain this level of external borrowing over the next 
few years. This will be maintained by replacing maturing loans. The under-
borrowed position  means that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement), has not been fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the 
Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary 
measure.  This strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty 
risk is relatively high. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2016/17 treasury operations.  

Page 11



 12 

The Director of Finance will monitor  interest rates in financial markets and adopt 
a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances: Any decisions will be reported 
to the appropriate decision making body at the next available opportunity. 

 
3.5 Treasury management limits on activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are 
to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby 
managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The indicators are: 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a 
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt 
position net of investments and is still set at +20%. 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to 
the previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed 
interest rates which is set at 175%. 

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 

£m 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 
Interest rate exposures 
 Upper Upper Upper 
Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 

+175% +175% +175% 

Limits on variable 
interest rates based on 
net debt 

+20% 
 

+20% 
 

+20% 
 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2016/17 
 Lower Upper 
Under 12 months 0% 20% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 
2 years to 5 years 0% 50% 
5 years to 10 years 0% 50% 
10 years to 20 years  0% 50% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 90% 
30 years to 40 years  0% 90% 
40 years to 50 years  0% 90% 
Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2016/17 
 Lower Upper 
Under 12 months 0% 20% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 20% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 20% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 20% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 20% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 20% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 20% 

 

Page 12



 13 

3.6 Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 
3.7 Debt rescheduling 

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by 
switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will 
need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of 
the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).  
 
The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  

• the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

• helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

• enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 
balance of volatility). 

 
Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for 
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely 
as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on 
current debt.   
 
All rescheduling will be reported to the Governance and Audit committee, at the 
earliest meeting following its action 

Page 13



 14 

3.8 Annual Investment Strategy 

3.8.1 Investment policy 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s  Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be security 
first, liquidity second, then return. 
  
In accordance with the above guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in order to 
minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit 
criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also 
enables diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings 
used to monitor counterparties are the Short Term and Long Term ratings.   
 
Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is 
important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro 
and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in 
which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of information 
that reflects the opinion of the markets. To this end the Council will engage with its 
advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” 
and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  
 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the 
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment 
counterparties. 

 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in 
appendix 1 under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. 
Counterparty limits will be as set through the Council’s treasury management 
practices – schedules.  

3.8.2 Creditworthiness policy  

The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the 
security of its investments, although the yield or return on the investment is 
also a key consideration.  After this main principle, the Council will ensure 
that: 

• It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment 
types it will invest in, criteria for choosing investment 
counterparties with adequate security, and monitoring their 
security.  This is set out in the specified and non-specified 
investment sections below; and 

• It has sufficient liquidity in its investments.  For this purpose it 
will set out procedures for determining the maximum periods for 
which funds may prudently be committed.  These procedures 
also apply to the Council’s prudential indicators covering the 
maximum principal sums invested.   

Page 14



 15 

The Director of Finance will maintain a counterparty list in compliance with the 
following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to Council for 
approval as necessary.  These criteria are separate to that which determines 
which types of investment instrument are either specified or non-specified as it 
provides an overall pool of counterparties considered high quality which the 
Council may use, rather than defining what types of investment instruments 
are to be used.   

The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties (both 
specified and non-specified investments) is: 

• Banks/ Building Society 1 - good credit quality – the Council will 
only use banks/building societies  which: 

i. are UK banks/building societies; and/or 

ii. are non-UK and domiciled in a country which has a minimum 
sovereign Long Term rating of AA- 

and have, as a minimum, the following Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s credit ratings (where rated): 

i. Short Term – S & P A-1 Fitch F1 and Moodys P-1 

Long Term – Moody’s Aa3 

• Banks/ Building Society 2 same as Bank 1 apart from Moody’s 
rating of A1 

• Banks/ Building Society 3 a credit rating of at least one of the 
following Moody’s long term A3, Fitch short term F1 or S & P 
short term A-1. 

• Banks– Part nationalised UK bank 4 – Nat West Bank. This 
bank can be included provided it continues to be part 
nationalised or it meets the ratings in Banks/ Building Society 1, 
2 or 3 above. 

• Banks 5 – The Council’s own banker for transactional purposes 
if the bank falls below the above criteria, although in this case 
balances will be minimised in both monetary size and time. 

• Bank subsidiary and treasury operation -.  The Council will use 
these where the parent bank has provided an appropriate 
guarantee or has the necessary ratings outlined above. .  

• Money market funds (MMFs) – AAA Moody’s Fitch or S&P 

• Local authorities, parish councils etc 

A limit of 20% will be applied to the use of non-specified investments. 

Use of additional information other than credit ratings. Additional requirements 
under the Code require the Council to supplement credit rating information.  
Whilst the above criteria relies primarily on the application of credit ratings to 
provide a pool of appropriate counterparties for officers to use, additional 
operational market information will be applied before making any specific 
investment decision from the agreed pool of counterparties.  This additional 
market information (for example Credit Default Swaps) will be applied to 
compare the relative security of differing investment counterparties. 

Page 15



 16 

 

Time and monetary limits applying to investments. The time and monetary 
limits for institutions on the Council’s counterparty list are as follows (these will 
cover both specified and non-specified investments): 

   Money  Limit Time  

Limit 

Banks/Building Society 1  £30m 2yrs 

Banks/Building Society  2  £20m  1yr 

Banks/Building Society  3  £7m 100 day 

Nat West Bank  £20m 1yr 

Councils bank if below above 
criteria 

  Day exposure 

Local authorities  £20m 1yr 

     

Money market funds   20m Liquid 

Co-op Bank temporary until 
alternative banking 
arrangements can be made 

  Day exposure 

 

The proposed criteria for specified and non-specified investments are shown 
in Appendix 1 for approval. 

3.8.3 Country and sector limits 

Due care will be taken to consider the country, group and sector exposure of 
the Council’s investments.   

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch (or equivalent). 
The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report 
are shown in Appendix 2.  This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers 
should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

3.8.4 Investment strategy 

In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 
investments up to 12 months).    
 
Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged 
at  0.5% before starting to rise from quarter 4 of 2016. Bank Rate forecasts for 
financial year ends (March) are:  

• 2016/17  0.60% 

• 2017/18  1.25% 

• 2018/19  1.75%    

Page 16



 17 

 
The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 
placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year are as follows:  
 

2016/17  0.60% 

2017/18  1.25% 

2018/19  1.75% 

2019/20  2.25% 

2020/21  2.50% 

2021/22  2.75% 

2022/23  2.75% 

2023/24  3.00% 

Later years 3.00% 

 

The overall balance of risks to these forecasts is currently to the downside (i.e. 
start of increases in Bank Rate occurs later).  However, should the pace of growth 
quicken and / or forecasts for increases in inflation rise, there could be an upside 
risk.  

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for 
greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity 
requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are 
based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

 
The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: - 
 
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

£m 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 
Principal sums invested > 
364 days 

£20m £20m £20m 

 
 
For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business 
reserve instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated 
deposits (overnight to100 days)  in order to benefit from the compounding of 
interest.   

3.8.5 Investment risk benchmarking 

This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment 
performance of its investment portfolio of 7 day LIBID compounded . 
 
3.8.6 School Bank Balances 
 
In the last Treasury report the investment  limits for the four main UK banks were 
reduced,and changed to using the same credit criteria as the other banks/ 
building societies . This mean’t that Lloyds limit changed to £20m and Barclays to 
£7m limited to 100 days. 
 
 

Page 17



 18 

This raised the following/new issues 
 
i)Bradford schools- The schools have their own individual balances with the four 
main banks.At present their overall balances with Lloyds and Barclays exceed  
the new Treasury policy limits. 
 
ii)Further more it should be noted that centrally held cash balances have, and are 
going to continue to,reduce significantly(due to repayment of loans and use of 
reserves). This will mean that the investment limits for our counterparties will 
reduce in the near future,most likely in the next report. 
 
iii)It also means that a large percentage of the overall cash held by the council 
could be in  the schools bank accounts, concentrated in a few counterparities. 
 
Proposal 
 
Review undertaken on schools balances and progress reported in the next 
Treasury report. 
 

3.8.7 End of year investment report 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report.  
 
4. Options 
 
4.1 None 
 
5. Financial and Resources Appraisal 
 
5.1 The financial implications are set out in section 1,2,3 and 4 
 
6. Risk Management 
 
6.1 None 
 
7. Legal Implications 
 
7.1 Any relevant implication considerations are set in the report. 
 
8. Other Implications 
 
8.1 Equal Rights implications –  
8.2 Sustainabilty implications – no direct implications 
8.3 Green house Gas Emissions Impact- no direct implications 
8.4 Community safety implications- no direct implications 
8.5 Human Rights Act – no direct implication 
8.6 Trade Unions – no direct implications 
8.7 Ward Implications – no direct implications 
 
9. Not for publications documents 

Page 18



 19 

None 
 
10. Recommendations 
 
10.1 That the Treasury policy be noted by Governance and Audit Committee and 
passed to full council for adoption. 

 

11. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 Specified and Unspecified Investments 

Appendix 2 Approved countries for investments 

Appendix 3 Treasury management scheme of delegation 

Appendix 4 The treasury management role of the section 151 officer 

 
 

Page 19



 20 

All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to 
maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where 
applicable. 

 
 Minimum 
credit 
criteria 

Use 

Debt Management 
Agency Deposit Facility 

- In-house 

Term deposit –local 
authority 

- In-house 

Term deposits – banks 
and building societies 

Moody’s Aa3 
,Fitch F1 and 
S & P A-1 or 
above  

In-house 

Term deposits – banks 
and building societies 

Moody’s A1 
,Fitch F1 and 
S & P A-1 or 
above 

In-house 

Term deposits – banks 
and building societies  

At least one 
of Moody’s 
A3 ,Fitch F1 
and S & P A-
1 or above  

In-house 

Certificate of deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies  

Moody’s Aa3 
,Fitch F1 and 
S & P A-1 or 
above 

In-house 

Certificate of deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies 

Moody’s A1 
,Fitch F1 and 
S & P A-1 or 
above 

In-house 

Certificate of deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies  

At least one 
of Moody’s 
A3 ,Fitch F1 
and S & P A-
1 or above  

In-house   
 

Part Nationalised Bank  
Sovereign 
Rating 

In-house   
 

Money Market Funds 
AAA either 
Moody’s Fitch 
or S & P 

In-house   
 

Appendix 1 
Specified Investments 

Page 20



 21 

Treasury Bills 
UK sovereign 
rating  

In-house   
 

 
Non– Specified Investments A maximum of 20% will be held in aggregate in 
non- specified investment 
 

1. Maturities of any period 
 
 

 
Minimum  Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Term deposits with unrated 
counterparties with unconditional 
guarantee from parent 

- At least one of 
Moody’s A3 ,Fitch F1 
and S & P A-1 or 
above - 

In-house 

Co-op specific Account   

Until the Director of 
Finance can find  
alternative 
arrangements- 

In-house 
Accountancy 

 
Maturities in excess of 1 year  

 

 
 Minimum 
Credit Criteria 

Use 
Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term deposit –local 
authority  

- In-house  2 years 

Term deposits – banks 
and building societies 

Moody’s Aa3 
,Fitch F1 and S 
& P A-1 or above  

In-house  2 years 

Certificates of deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies  

Moody’s Aa3 
Fitch F1 S & P 
A-1  

In-house  2 years 

 
 

 

 

Page 21



 22 

Appendix 2: Approved countries for investments 

AAA                      

• Australia 

• Canada 

• Denmark 

• Germany 

• Luxembourg 

• Netherlands  

• Norway 

• Singapore 

• Sweden 

• Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

• Finland 

• U.K. 

• U.S.A. 

 

AA 

•  

• France 

 

AA- 

• Belgium  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 23 

Appendix 3: Treasury management scheme of delegation 

(i) Full Council 

• receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 
practices and activities; 

• approval of annual strategy. 

 

(ii) Governance and Audit Commitee 

• approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices; 

• approval of the division of responsibilities; 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations; 

 

(iii) Internal Audit 

• reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 24 

 

Appendix 4: The treasury management role of the section 151 officer 

The S151 (responsible) officer 

• recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

• submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 

• receiving and reviewing management information reports; 

• reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 

• ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and 
the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function; 

• ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 

• approving the appointment of external service providers.  

 

Page 24



 

Report of the External Auditor to the meeting of 
Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 18 
March 2016. 
 
 

Subject:             AO 
 
External audit progress report for the 2015/16 audits of City of Bradford 
Metropolitan District Council and West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

Summary statement: 
 
The report updates the Governance and Audit Committee on progress with the 
2015/16 audits and highlights key emerging national issues which may be of interest 
to the Committee.  
  
 
 

Mark Kirkham 
Director 
Mazars LLP 
 

 

Report Contact:  Steve Appleton 
Phone: (01274) 431995 
E-mail: steve.appleton@mazars.co.uk 

 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 2/



1. SUMMARY 
 
As part of our audit we need to understand how the Governance and Audit Committee, as 
those charged with governance, gains assurance over management processes and 
arrangements: 

• to prevent and detect fraud; and 

• to comply with applicable law and regulations. 

The request also covers the appropriateness of the going concern assumption. 
 
In our progress report we ask some questions about the arrangements and would be 
grateful if the Committee could provide a response by 30 April 2016. 
 
We have also highlighted changes affecting the public inspection of accounts. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
� Not applicable. 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
� None.  
 

 
4. OPTIONS 
 
� Not applicable.   
 
 

5. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
� Not applicable.   
 

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
� None.   
 
7. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
� Not applicable.   
 
 
8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
� Not applicable.   
 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
� Not applicable.   
 

Page 26



8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
� Not applicable.  
 
8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
� Not applicable. 
 
8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
� Not applicable. 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION 
 
� Not applicable.   
 
8.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
� Not applicable. 
 
9. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
� None.   
 
10. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Governance and Audit Committee considers 

• the external audit progress report and briefing; and 

• the request for a response (by 30 April 2016) to questions about arrangements 
to prevent and detect fraud and to comply with applicable law and regulations. 

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
� External audit progress report and briefing 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
� None.   
 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



External Audit Progress Report

18 March 2016

City of Bradford Metropolitan 

District Council

Page 29

Agenda Item 3/



Contents

2

Our reports are prepared in the context of the Audit Commission’s ‘Statement of 

responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. Reports and letters prepared by 

appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for the 

sole use of the Authority and we take no responsibility to any member or officer in 

their individual capacity or to any third party.

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, the international advisory and accountancy 

organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England 

with registered number OC308299.

Purpose of this paper

Summary of audit progress

Publications

Contact details

01

02

03

04

Page 30



3

01

Purpose of this paper

This paper updates the Governance and Audit Committee on progress in 

meeting my responsibilities as your external auditor. It also highlights key 

emerging national issues and developments which may be of interest to you.

If you require any further information please contact Mark Kirkham or Steve 

Appleton using the contact details at the end of this update.

Finally, please note the website address www.mazars.co.uk

which sets out the range of work Mazars carries out across the UK public 

sector. It also details the services provided within the UK and abroad.

Page 31

http://www.mazars.co.uk/


4

02
Summary of audit progress

As part of our audit we need to understand how the Governance and Audit 

Committee, as those charged with governance, gains assurance over 

management processes and arrangements:

• to prevent and detect fraud; and

• to comply with applicable law and regulations.

We list below our questions and would be grateful if the Committee could 

provide a response by 30 April 2016.

Your responses will inform our assessment of the risk of fraud and error within 

the financial statements, which in turn determines the extent of audit work we 

need to undertake.

Page 32



5

Audits of City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council and 

West Yorkshire Pension Fund for the year end 31 March 2016

1) How do you exercise oversight of management's processes in relation to:

• undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may 

be materially misstated due to fraud or error; 

• identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the authority, please detail 

any specific risks of fraud which management have identified, and 

classes of transactions, account balances, or disclosure for which a risk 

of fraud is likely to exist; 

• communicating to employees its view on business practice and ethical 

behavior; and 

• communicating to you the processes for identifying and responding to 

fraud or error.

2) How do you oversee management processes for identifying and 

responding to possible breaches of internal control?  Are you aware of any 

significant breaches of internal control during 2015/16?

3) How do you gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have 

been complied with?  Are you aware of any instances of significant non-

compliance during 2015/16?

4) Are you aware of any actual or potential litigation or claims that would 

affect the financial statements?

5) Have you carried out a preliminary assessment of the going concern 

assumption and if so have you identified any events which may cast 

significant doubt on the authority’s ability to continue as a going concern?

Page 33



6

Changes affecting the public inspection of the accounts 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) have made changes to, 

amongst other things: 

• the roles and responsibilities associated with informing electors of their 

rights; and 

• the publication of draft and audited statements of account and 

information that accompanies those statements.

It is now the Responsible Financial Officer’s responsibility to publish a 

statement that includes details of the period for the exercise of public 

rights. It is also now the Responsible Financial Officer’s responsibility to 

inform the auditor of the date on which that period commences; previously 

the auditor was responsible for ‘calling the audit’ and appointing a specific 

date on which electors could ask questions relating to the audit. 

The period for the exercise of public rights must be a single period of 30 

working days. Electors can only exercise their rights of inspection and 

objection, as set out in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, during 

this period. The period must include the first 10 working days of July for this 

year’s audit.

The Regulations also set out the revised timetable for the preparation and 

audit of the Council’s financial statements from 2017/18. We continue to 

work closely with the Council’s finance team to ensure that we both meet the 

revised timetable.

Page 34



7

03
Publications

The following pages outline for your attention some significant publications in 

respect of:

• Guidance for Directors of companies partly or fully owned by the public 

sector, January 2016;

• Supporting the transition, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, February 

2016;

• Cipfa: Guide to auditor panels, December 2015; and

• Mazars: Public services blog ‘Let’s talk public services’

Page 35



8

Guidance for Directors of companies partly or fully owned by the 

public sector, January 2016

This guidance, which has been published by the Cabinet office, is to help 

directors of companies owned by the public sector, in full or in part, to 

understand their duties and responsibilities, including identifying and 

managing conflicts of interest.  As local government and related bodies 

increasingly explore alternative models of service delivery, including 

establishing local authority trading companies, this guidance is of relevance.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-directors-of-

companies-fully-or-partly-owned-by-the-public-sector

An additional guidance paper referred to in the Cabinet Office report is a 

National Audit Office paper produced in January 2015 on Conflicts of 

Interest.  This is also of relevance to authorities that are operating in an 

increasingly complex environment of related entities.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/conflicts-interest-2/

Page 36

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-directors-of-companies-fully-or-partly-owned-by-the-public-sector
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/conflicts-interest-2/


9

Supporting the transition, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, 

February 2016

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published its Corporate 

Plan for the period to 2018. The Plan sets out how the company will 

discharge the functions delegated to it by the Secretary of State for 

Communities and Local Government which include managing audit 

contracts originally let by the Audit Commission and supporting a smooth 

transition to the new audit regime introduced by the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014. 

PSAA’s work programme involves two parallel strands: 

• ensuring that the existing audit contracts continue to deliver good 

quality and positive value for audited bodies and effective assurance to 

the public; and

• providing as much support as possible to assist local bodies to prepare 

for, and be ready to meet, their new responsibilities as the legislation is 

fully implemented.

For principal local authorities and criminal justice bodies the existing 

arrangements will continue for audits up to and including 2017/18. For these 

bodies the new regime will apply to 2018/19 audits and beyond.

As part of its role in supporting local bodies to prepare for their 

responsibilities under the new regime, PSAA has set up on its website a 

dedicated Supporting the transition area containing resources to assist local 

public bodies in making the transition to the new arrangements.

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/

Page 37

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/


10

A further important aspect of PSAA's work in relation to the new regime will 

involve working with the Local Government Association and the 

Improvement and Development Agency to explore the feasibility of PSAA 

seeking to become a ‘sector-led body’ with the ability to enter into contracts 

and appoint auditors to local bodies in the new regime. Further information 

will be provided on PSAA’s website as this work progresses.

CIPFA: Guide to auditor panels, December 2015

This publication is aimed at those within local authorities who will have a 

role to play in deciding how and who to appoint as their organisation’s local 

auditors.

It has been commissioned by DCLG, and a working group including DCLG, 

NAO, Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) and other 

stakeholders have ensured that the guidance is relevant and specific to 

authorities.

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-

panels-pdf

Mazars: Public services blog ‘Let’s talk public services’

Mazars has launched a blog ‘Let’s talk public services’ where Mazars’ team 

of auditors and advisors working with UK public service organisations can 

provide a place in which public service practitioners can exchange 

experience and ideas relevant to their jobs. The blog can be found here:

http://blogs.mazars.com/lets-talk-public-services

Page 38

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://blogs.mazars.com/lets-talk-public-services


11

04
Contact details

Mark Kirkham Partner and Engagement Lead

mark.kirkham@mazars.co.uk

0113 3878850

Steve Appleton Senior Manager

steve.appleton@mazars.co.uk

07881 283340

Address: Mazars House

Gelderd Road

Gildersome

Leeds

LS27 7JN

Page 39

mailto:mark.kirkham@mazars.co.uk
mailto:steve.appleton@mazars.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund to 
the meeting of Governance and Audit Committee to be 
held on 18 March 2016. 
 
 
 

Subject:             AP 
 
Minutes of West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) Joint Advisory Group held on 28 
January 2016. 
 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
The Council’s Financial Regulations require the minutes of meeting of the WYPF 
Joint Advisory Group to be submitted to this committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rodney Barton 
Director 

Portfolio:   
 
Leader of Council & Strategic Regeneration 
 

Report Contact:  Rodney Barton 
Phone: (01274) 432317 
E-mail: Rodney.barton@bradford.gov.uk 

 

  
 
 

 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4/



This page is intentionally left blank



28 January 2016 

   9 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the West Yorkshire Pension 
Fund Joint Advisory Group held on Thursday  
28 January 2016 at West Yorkshire Pension Fund, 
Aldermanbury House, Bradford 
  

Commenced 1410 
          Concluded 1505 

PRESENT – Councillors 
 
Bradford Members 
Thornton (Ch) 
Lal 

Calderdale Members 
Baines 
Lynn 
Metcalfe 

Kirklees Members 
Mather 
Richards 
Sokal 

Leeds Members 
Davey 
Dawson 

Wakefield Members 
Speight 

Trade Union Representatives  
L Bailey - Unison  
C Chard - GMB 
I Greenwood – Unison 

Scheme Members 
W Robinson 

 

 
 
Apologies: Councillor Miller (Bradford); Councillor Jones (Wakefield) and Councillor 
Harrand (Leeds). 
 
Councillor Thornton in the Chair 

 
 
17. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
All those present who were members or beneficiaries of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
disclosed, in the interests of transparency, an interest in all relevant business under 
consideration. 
 
 
Action: Assistant City Solicitor 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 5/



28 January 2016 

   10 

18. MINUTES 
 
Resolved -  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2015 be signed as a correct record. 
 
 
19. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict documents.   
 
 
20. REVISED ESTIMATES 2015/16 AND ESTIMATES 2016/17 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (Document “L) presented the 
revised estimate for 2015/16 and the original estimate for 2016/17 for administration costs 
of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) and provided explanations for the revisions. 
 
Members were advised that the cost of managing the fund was charged directly to the 
Pension Fund and not to local authorities’ general fund accounts.    The budgets proposed 
in the report were to deliver pension administration services to over 352,000 pension 
scheme members, 575 employers and investment management services for over £11 
billion WYPF investment assets. 
 
A significant increase reported for computer costs was questioned and Members were 
advised that the increase was as a result of a new accounting guide by Cipfa which had to 
be observed by all Local Government Pension Schemes.  The guidance required those 
costs, previously recorded as investment expenditure now being classified as ‘general 
management costs’.  It was explained that the increase due to that reclassification was 
actually nearer to £1.4m but efficiencies made elsewhere had reduced the amount to the  
£1 million now recorded. 
 
The increased employee costs contained in the estimates were questioned and it was 
explained that resources had been retained for vacancies held in the service should they 
be required.     The increase to £8.2m in the 2016/17 estimate reflected the value of those 
vacancies and it was reiterated that the costs would be recharged to the organisations 
supported. 
 
In response to discussions about the charges made for services Members were assured 
that further economies of scale were being delivered and that the fund will be providing 
administration for seven fire authorities from 1 April 2016.  Following discussions about the 
number of staff employed it was explained that the staffing structure contained 120 
employees and there were approximately 10 vacancies. 
 
Resolved – 
 
It is recommended that the revised estimates for 2015/16 of £8,823,310 and original 
estimates for 2016/17 of £9,600,110 be approved. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
   
    
 

Page 44



28 January 2016 

   11 

21. 2016 ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “M”), informed 
Members that the triennial actuarial valuation of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) 
would be prepared based on the situation at 31 March 2016 and the valuation would 
determine the level of employers’ contributions from April 2017 onwards. 
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, explained that a key message being sent to 
employers was to ensure that accurate and timely returns were provide as the figures in 
the next quarter would be the figure that was used by the actuary.  Members agreed the 
benefits of ensuring employer contributions remained stable. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the report be noted.                                     
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
22. DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT (DCLG) 

CONSULTATION: REVOKING AND REPLACING THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
PENSION SCHEME (LGPS) (MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS) 
REGULATIONS 2009 

 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “N”), advised 
Members of the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) consultation 
on revoking and replacing the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009. 
 
It was reported that the new regulations, in summary, would make following three 
changes:- 
 

� The introduction of an Investment Strategy and the removal of the prudential limits. 
� The requirement for funds to pool their assets. 
� The power for the Secretary of State to intervene where an Investment Strategy 

was deemed not acceptable; a fund did not make satisfactory pooling 
arrangements, or did not make suitable arrangements to make investments 
determined by the Secretary of State. Only infrastructure investments were 
specifically mentioned in the consultation. 

 
A summary of the draft regulations was appended to Document “N”.  In response to 
discussions about the power for the Secretary of State to intervene where an Investment 
Strategy was not deemed to be acceptable was discussed.  It was explained that the 
circumstances when the Secretary of State could intervene were not clearly defined in the 
consultation documents which had been issued. In response to questions about what the 
intervention could provide which the current control systems could not it was reiterated that 
the intervention may be used to ensure pooling arrangements were made, and investment 
in infrastructure assets.  
 
A strong view that the WYPF should be left to make its own decisions about its funds and 
that intervention by the Secretary of State was not believed to be an improvement to the 
current regulations was expressed.   
 
Members agreed that intervention to deal with incompetence was good practice; however, 
it was stressed that the fund did not have a record of irresponsible investments; it invested 
prudently and did take account of the needs of the local economy.   It was felt that the 

Page 45



28 January 2016 

   12 

proposals were too broad; intervention could occur under any circumstances and that 
other legislation and the National Scheme Advisory Board were already available to deal 
with unacceptable investment strategies. 
 
Members requested that their strong views, expressed at the meeting, be conveyed in the 
consultation response.  It was further suggested that the WYPF should be used as an 
exemplar to others.   
 
It was confirmed to Members that similar views about the consultation had been made at 
the Investment Advisory Panel which had taken place earlier in the day. 
 
Resolved – 
 
(1) That the draft regulations, and a view that those draft regulations do not 

cause any concerns on the matters pertaining directly to investments, be 
noted. 

 
(2) That the views of Members expressed during the meeting be included in the 

response to the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
consultation on revoking and replacing the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009. 

 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
23. INVESTMENT REFORM CRITERIA AND GUIDANCE – INVESTMENT POOLING 
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, presented a report (Document “O) which 
advised Members of the Government’s intention to work with Local Government Pension 
Schemes (LGPS) administering authorities to ensure that they pooled investments to 
significantly reduce costs while maintaining overall investment performance.  
 
Members were informed that West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) had held initial 
discussions with a group of principally Northern based funds, and had publicly indicated 
that it was working with Greater Manchester, Merseyside and Durham Pension Funds, 
although other funds may join the group before the 19 February deadline. A more 
comprehensive proposal must be drawn up for submission to the Government by 15 July 
2016. That submission would be assessed against the criteria in the guidance document. 
The Chancellor had announced that the pools should take the form of up to six British 
Wealth Funds, each with assets of at least £25bn, which would be able to invest in 
infrastructure and drive local growth.  
 
A Member suggested that the WYPF submission should state that as the lowest cost fund 
it should be exempt from the proposals.  It was acknowledged, however, that an 
exemption would be unlikely to be approved. 
 
In response to questions about the effect on future valuations of the fund it was explained 
that liability would remain with individual funds as only their assets would be pooled. 
 
It was explained that as part of the proposals Local Authorities should explain how they 
might develop or acquire the capacity and capability to assess infrastructure projects, and 
reduce costs by managing any subsequent investments directly through the pool(s), 
rather than existing fund, or “fund of funds” arrangements.  The ability to provide cost 
savings  was questioned, and Members were advised that for many funds cost savings 
would be straightforward, but problems could arise as WYPF was already the lowest cost 

Page 46



28 January 2016 

   13 

provider.  There may be opportunities to negotiate a more favourable fee structure or 
profit arrangements and assumptions would have to be made about the value pools.  It 
was felt that there should be a national infrastructure arrangement so that funds were not 
competing with other local authorities.    It was believed that the response to the 
consultation would be common from all authorities in the proposed pool, and that the 
Local Government Association was assisting with those responses by coordinating 
meetings with DCLG and Treasury.   
 
Whilst the principle of growing the economy was supported concerns were expressed 
about powers being made to dictate the investments made by funds.  Reassurance was 
sought that the fund would not be vulnerable and unable to pay its members.  It was 
explained that the vulnerability was the rationale for working with other funds, to ensure 
the liabilities of the fund could be met.   
 
Resolved – 
 
That Members note the content of the reform proposals and approve the continued 
development of pooling arrangements outlined in Document “O”, which will be 
subject to further reports to the Investment Advisory Group (IAP) between now and 
the deadline of 15 July, and which will probably require an additional IAP meeting 
ahead of the deadline.  
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
24. DEVELOPMENTS WITHIN THE WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (Document “P”) set out 
developments within the Fund in the last year covering changes in employers, 
membership, performance and benchmarking, employer and customer service surveys, 
internal dispute resolution procedure cases and external business. 
 
Appended to the report were fund statistics including communication initiatives and results 
from employer and customer service surveys, including a sample of responses.  A 
summary of internal dispute resolution procedures cases, also appended, revealed a 
reduction in the cases upheld.  It was felt that the reduction in upheld cases indicated that 
employers were improving their procedures. 
 
Resolved - 
 
That the report be noted.                  
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
25. GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, submitted Document “Q” which reported 
that, in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013 (Regulation 55), WYPF was required to produce a Governance 
Compliance Statement.  
 
The Governance Compliance Statement, appended to Document “Q”, had been updated 
to include reference to the establishment of West Yorkshire Pension Fund Pension Board 
in 2015. 

Page 47



28 January 2016 

   14 

 
The membership of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Local Pension Board was queried 
and it was agreed that a list of members would be circulated following the meeting. 
 
Resolved - 
 
That the updated Governance Compliance Statement, contained in Document “Q”, 
be approved. 

      
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
26. REPORTING BREACHES OF LAW 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “R”), informed 
Members that, in accordance with the Pensions Act, from April 2015, all Public Service 
Pension Schemes came under the remit of the Pensions Regulator. 

 
Section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 (the Act) imposed a requirement to report a matter to 
The Pensions Regulator as soon as was reasonably practicable where that person had 
reasonable cause to believe that: 

 
(a) a legal duty relating to the administration of the scheme had not been or was not 

being complied with, and 
(b) the failure to comply was likely to be of material significance to The Pensions 

Regulator in the exercise of any of its functions. 
 
Document “R” revealed that two entries had been made on the breaches register since 
April 2015.  Details of those breaches were reported at the meeting and contained on the 
Breaches Register appended to the report.  Members were advised that the breaches 
were not of material significance and steps were in place to mitigate their recurrence. 
 
It was explained that the Register of Breaches (reported or otherwise) would be provided 
to each Joint Advisory Group meeting and shared with the West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
Board.   
 
Resolved – 
 
(1) That WYPF’s Breaches Procedure, contained in Appendix 1 to Document “R” be 

approved. 
 
(2) That both entries made on the Breaches Register since April 2015 be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
27. ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS (AVC) PROVIDER REVIEW 
 
At the Joint Advisory Group meeting in July 2015 a question was raised in respect of the 
charges being paid by Prudential AVC contributors. 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “S”) provided an 
update on a meeting held with Prudential about their charges, the service provided and 
performance. 
 

Page 48



28 January 2016 

   15 

It was explained that at the meeting the current pricing structure and how that compared to 
private sector schemes was discussed.  An explanation as to the pricing structure was 
provided and a summary of what was included in the pricing for AVC facilities was 
appended to Document “S”.  It was reported that the company had taken on board the 
comments made at the meeting and a revised pricing structure was awaited.  An update 
would be provided at the next meeting. 
 
Progress on the issue was welcomed and the imperative to receive value for money when 
AVCs were procured for all WYPF members was stressed.  Concerns that the company 
had been complacent were raised and the requirement to ensure value for money was 
reiterated.   
 
Members were advised of work being undertaken on a framework for national tender 
arrangements for the provision of AVCs and assured that pressure would be applied on 
Prudential ahead of the outcome of the national framework arrangements. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That Document “S” be noted and the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, be 
requested to present a further report to the next meeting as part of the annual AVC 
review once Prudential have reviewed their pricing structure. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

 
28. SHARED SERVICE PARTNERSHIP WITH LINCOLNSHIRE PENSION FUND 

 
West Yorkshire Pension Fund’s (WYPF) shared service partnership to provide a pensions 
administration service for Lincolnshire Pension Fund (LPF) commenced from 1 April 2015.   
  
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “T”), provided an 
update on the partnership.  Members were reminded that WYPF provided a full 
administration service to LPF for both the LGPS and Fire Fighters’ Pension Scheme. That 
service included pensioner payroll, all member and scheme level events, reporting to 
statutory bodies, and provision of data to external bodies such as actuaries, and 
Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) Resources Directorate for the production of the 
scheme accounts.    
 
An administration update revealed that by 30 November 2015, the date specified by the 
Pensions Regulator, WYPF had sent Annual Benefit Statements to 96% of Lincolnshire 
Pension Fund members. The balance required additional information from employers 
before the annual benefit statements could be sent out.  It was reported that monthly 
contribution returns were being received from LPF Employers except for one notable 
absence – LCC.  This was causing some concern and was creating a backlog of work.  
This was being regularly chased up with LPF who were doing all they could to resolve the 
issue. 

  
It was reported that WYPF had been recruiting to a staff vacancy in the Lincoln office.  The 
post was advertised both in Bradford and Lincoln and after a recruitment exercise the 
vacancy had been filled by a WYPF staff member who was looking to relocate to Lincoln.  
She had considerable pensions experience and it was felt would be a good asset to the 
Lincoln team.   
 
Membership numbers for LPF were provided.  It was confirmed that membership 
continued to grow and costs per member were reducing. 

Page 49



28 January 2016 

   16 

 
Resolved – 
 
That the report be noted.                  
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
29. PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY AND COMMUNICATIONS POLICY 

2016/17 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “U”) advised 
Members that, as part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations 
2013, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) prepared a written statement of the 
authority’s policies in relation to such matters as it considered appropriate in relation to 
procedures for liaison and communication with scheme employers and the levels of 
performance which the employers and WYPF were expected to achieve. 
 
The Pensions Administration Strategy and Communications Policy were produced last 
year and approved by the Joint Advisory Group (JAG).  It was confirmed that the policies 
would be brought before JAG each year to review and approve, particularly if there were 
any new regulations and revisions to working practices following those regulations. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the Pension Administration Strategy and the Communications Policy 2016/17, 
contained in Document “U” be approved. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 
30. TRAINING, CONFERENCES AND SEMINARS 
 
Members were assured that the training of Joint Advisory Group Members to understand 
their responsibilities and the issues they would be dealing with was a high priority.   
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund submitted a report, (Document “V”), which 
informed Members of training courses, conferences and seminars which may assist them.  
Full details of each event were available at the meeting. 
 
Members were requested to give consideration to attending the training courses, 
conferences and seminars set out in Document “V”. 
 
No resolution was passed on this item. 

________________________ 

 
          Chair 
 
Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a correct record at the next meeting 

of the Committee.   
 
 
minutes\WYPFjag28Jan16 
 

THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER   

Page 50


	Agenda
	1 TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION STRATEGY AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2016/17 (DOCUMENT "AN")
	2 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE 2015/16 AUDITS OF CITY OF BRADFORD METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL AND WYPF (DOCUMENT "AO" - COVERING REPORT)
	3 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE 2015/16 AUDITS OF CITY OF BRADFORD MDC AND WYPF (DOCUMENT "AO")
	4 MINUTES OF WYPF JOINT ADVISORY GROUP HELD ON 28 JANUARY 2016 (DOCUMENT "AP" - COVERING REPORT)
	5 MINUTES OF WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND JOINT ADVISORY GROUP HELD ON 28 JANUARY 2016 (DOCUMENT "AP")

